AGENDA
REDWAY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SPECIAL BUSINESS MEETING

Location: RCSD Business Office; 1150 Evergreen Rd. #2
Date: June 19, 2024

Time: 5:30 P.M.

Posted:  June 14, 2024

I. CALL TO ORDER

Il. ROLL CALL

___Arthur MClure, Chm. ____Linda Sutton ___Marie Etherton
__Dian Griffith, Vice-Chm ___Michael McKaskle

I1l. LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT:

The Redway Community Services District acknowledges that it is located within the traditional lands of the Wailaki and
other Indigenous peoples. On this unceded ancestral land along the river they call Sinkyokok, generations of people have
stewarded this land and continue to care for the land and water. We look to our indigenous communities for their
experience in caring for the water and land that we both inhabit and commit to working with them to provide quality water
for all.

IV. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:
V. PUBLIC COMMENT:
An opportunity for any member of the public to address the Board of Directors on any matter not on the Agenda but which is within

the jurisdiction of the Board. The Board may limit time allowed for each speaker. An item may be discussed by the Board but no
action will take place during this portion of the agenda as this would constitute an illegal act of the Board.

VI. ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS:

1. Place of Use Boundary.
ACTION REQUIRED: Discussion / Report / Action / Resolution 2023-2024-08
2. Adoption of the State Water Resources Control Board Cross Connection
Policy Handbook CA-EPA CCCPH.
ACTION REQUIRED: Discussion / Report / Action

VIl. CORRESPONDENCE:

VIIl. ADJOURNMENT OF SPECIAL BUSINESS MEETING:

Location of related writings is available for public review: Redway CSD Office, 1150 Evergreen Road #2 Redway, Ca.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the
RCSD at (707)923-3101. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements
Pagelofl

RCSD SPECIAL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA JUNE 19, 2024
Page 1 of 114



Page Left Intentionally Blank

Page 2 of 114



4JsConsulting

P.O. BoX 653
Blue Lake, Ca 95525
(F0#) 222-456F

Memorandum

To Board of Directors
_Agency Redway Community Service District
From Jennie Short, Project Manager

Mtg. Date June 19, 2024
Project WATER RIGHTS PETITION FOR CHANGE IN PLACE OF USE PROJECT

Background Information

RCSD holds three water rights. Two are for the infiltration gallery in the South Fork of the Eel
River (one license and one permit) and the third is a permit for an Unnamed Stream. The basic
information for each one is shown in the table below.

. . . Max Max
App. # App Permit | Permit | License Water Source | Diversion | Diversion
Date # Date #

(cfs) (acre-ft/year)
11876 | 05/12/47 | 7489 | 09/16/49 | 3791 SF Eel River 0.223 161.45
23017 | 04/05/68 | 15665 | 07/25/68 --- SF Eel River 1.050 441
23018 | 04/05/68 | 15666 | 07/25/68 --- Unnamed 0.123 52

Stream

With each of these water rights, a Place of Use has been approved by the State Waterboard
through the Division of Water Rights. It is not uncommon for the Place of Use to be different for
each of the water rights if the water diverted from the source is only transmitted to a subset of
the overall customers. For Redway, the water diverted from the SF of the Eel River under
Applications 23017 and 11876 is diverted at a single infiltration gallery, treated at the Surface
Water Treatment Plant, then distributed to the customers and stored in the various water
storage tanks. The permit for the river has a development period that ended on December 1,
1995. For the permit on the Unnamed Stream, water hasn’t been diverted under Application
23018 since June 2008. In 1984 and 1988 the District asked for this permit to be converted to a
license.

In 2004, the State Waterboard Division of Water Rights wrote a memo to file summarizing their
analysis that the expansion of the POU identified during the 1994 inspection was exempt from
CEQA and that they recommended converting the two permits into licenses. Current staff at
DWR do not know why this was not completed back then. It would have required a final field
inspection, and at that time available staff was insufficient for the number of projects that needed
to be inspected. The POU for A11876 does not include the expanded POU for YMCA & the
other SFR parcels. The POUs for A23017 (dated 1985) & A23018 (dated 1994) both include
YMCA, SFR parcels, and the sewer treatment plant.

| filed a California Public Records Act Request with the Humboldt County Planning Department
and five large pdfs of information related to the Meadows Subdivisions Unit 1 (2 phases) Unit 2
(initial + minor deviation) and Unit 3 (2 phases) were received. | have sifted through the
thousand plus pages that cover a fifty year period to create the attached timeline summarizing
the significant events. | also met with Jim Johnson, who was very helpful in filling in the blanks
and providing copies of agreements that the County did not possess. There are outstanding

Page 3 of 114 |4Pages



4JsConsulting

questions that might be answered by filing additional CPRAs with other departments of the
County (i.e. Public Works and Environmental Health). The answers to these questions would be
interesting but are not necessary to move forward with the contemplated project. | would be
happy to pursue the answers if RCSD wants to expend the extra funds to try to find them.

After digitizing and analyzing the three maps from DWR showing the current Places of Use, it is
apparent that RCSD is delivering water outside of its POU, but to customers that have been
served for decades by RCSD. These customers are part of the area annexed in 1993 with the
Meadows Business Park subdivision {APNs 223-311-004 to 013 and -016 to -019 and -022 to -
032 and -035 to -037 and -040 to - 045 and APNs 223-171-018 to -021, APN 222-151-004 and -
005, tidy up along APN 222-222-004 and -006} plus APN 222-161-002. These customers were
annexed into the Local Agency Formation Commission regulated Jurisdictional Boundary, or
documented as out of agency services, but the process of petitioning the Division of Water
Rights to change the Place of Use to add these customers was not completed. There is a
process to remedy this oversight, which is to petition the Division of Water Rights to change
Place of Use for the District’s license and permit(s).

The proposed project consists of petitioning the Division of Water Rights to change the Place of
Use for the two water rights that are diverted from the river to include the area annexed into the
LAFCo Jurisdictional Boundary in 1993 and/or currently served with water and to tidy up the
boundaries to match with APN boundaries. Maps 1 and 2 are attached, one for each river
diversion, that show the existing POU and the proposed POU. They are also attachments to the
draft Resolution 2023-2024-08.

One other critical item relates to the development period for the river permit (A23017), which
expired December 1, 1995, which means that whatever the maximum volume of water diverted
prior to that date becomes the maximum that can ever be diverted under the permit. | have
created a graph from all the diversion data | complied, and it is attached for your reference.
Notice that the maximum diversion from the river was 73,200,000 gallons in 1989, but that same
year 21,400.00 gallons were diverted at the spring. The maximum diversion from the spring was
23,600,000 gallons in 1987, and that same year 66,200.00 gallons were diverted at the spring.
These maximums equate to a total water diverted of about 94.6MG in a year. There were five
years immediately following the cessation of the use of the spring that exceeded 73,200,000
gallons: 2009 through 2013. It has never been exceeded since. One of the crucial decisions
for this project is whether to accept 73.2MG as the maximum RCSD will ever divert from the
river or if RCSD wants to pursue and extension of time to 2013 so that the maximum year (2011)
volume of 82,178,500 gallons diverted from the river could be considered when applying for a
license for this permit.

One other related item is that in 1991, LAFCo annexed into RCSD’s Jurisdictional Boundary a
parcel (then APN 222-166-06) that was proposed as the Redway Senior Housing Project. The
proposed change in POU does not include this area.

CEQA

The modification of the Place of Use for the District’s water rights is considered a “project” under
CEQA, and as such must be reviewed. The first review completed for any project is to determine
if there are statutory or categorical exemptions that apply. This project consists of adding 43
Assessor Parcel Numbers to the Place of Use for both water rights held on the South Fork of the
Eel River.

After many years of coordination between the Meadows Business Park subdivision developers,
the County Planning Department, LAFCo, and RCSD; on September 7, 1993 the RCSD Board
adopted resolution 93-04 which ultimately approved annexation of the property that consists of

Page 4 of 114 2|4Pages



4JsConsulting

the Meadows Business Park along with six adjacent parcels into the District’s Jurisdictional
Boundary. The Humboldt Local Agency Formation Commission had already adopted resolution
93-04 on September 1, 1993 adopting the Mitigated Negative Declaration and approving
annexation of these properties into the RCSD Jurisdictional Boundary. At that time the
annexation was for sewer service. The Governor’s Office of Planning and Research confirmed
on September 1, 1993 in a letter to the Humboldt County Planning Department that the review
period for the Notice of Determination for the annexation had been reviewed through the State
Clearinghouse. Over the next five years, the developer and RCSD entered into agreements
regarding the construction and purchase of the water and sewer infrastructure that was
constructed by Wallan and Johnson. The culmination of these efforts was the Bill of Sale
executed on March 16, 1998 and the transfer of the infrastructure and easements to the District.

The current project consists of correcting the fact that the District should have petitioned the
Division of Water Rights to expand their Place of Use for AO11876 and A023017 for the river
and A023018 for the Unnamed Stream, so that these areas that were being served sewer only
would be annexed into the POU so they could also be served with water. All of the infrastructure
to serve these parcels exists. All but a few parcels are current customers of the District. Under
the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Sections 15301 - 15332, this project meets the
criteria for Categorical Exemptions from the California Environmental Quality Act under Class 1 -
Existing Facilities and Class 19 - Annexations of Existing Facilities and Lots for Exempt
Facilities. Attached you will find a Notice of Exemption for your review based upon these two
classes. The Board may adopt it at this meeting.

Effective January 1, 2024, SB 69 requires local agencies to adhere to the following procedures
pursuant to Public Resources Code (“PRC”) section 21152. If a local agency files an NOE with
the county clerk of each county in which the project is located, the local agency must also file the
NOE with the State Clearinghouse in the OPR. SB 69 mandates that NODs and NOEs, filed
pursuant to PRC section 21152, including any subsequent or amended notice, be posted in both
the office and website of the applicable county clerk and by the OPR on the State Clearinghouse
website within 24 hours of receipt, and must remain posted for 30 days. Local agencies are
mandated to electronically file NODs and NOEs with the State Clearinghouse in the OPR. This
is done through the CEQA submit website. RCSD does have an account there that can be used
to upload the NOE. A paper copy of the signed NOE along with a check for $50 and the
Humboldt County Clerk-Recorder’s Office CEQA Document Declaration will need to be
delivered to the clerk’s office.

Filing the Notice of Exemption with the County Clerk starts a 35-day statute of limitations period
on legal challenges to the agency’s decision that the exemption is applicable to the project.
After the 30-day posting period is completed, the County will return the NOE to RCSD with the
various stamps. This stamped version should be included in the application to DWR for the
POU petition.

Major Milestones for the POU Petition Process

Milestone Status/Timeline
1. Collect available data from DWR & Completed
LAFCo
2. Prepare maps for Board review & Completed
approval Presented to BOD @ 04/17/24 meeting

Selection of proposed POU boundary

3. Collect historical data from RCSD files for Completed
customer billing, river diversion, past
diversion reports to DWR, etc.

Page 5 of 114 Sl4Pages



4JsConsulting

Milestone Status/Timeline
4. Adopt NOE for project To Be Considered by BOD @ 06/19/24
meeting

5. Prepare historical diversion graphs and Completed
analysis to support petition

6. NOE statute time closes 07/26/2024

7. Prepare application for Minor Change in Present to BOD @ Aug. 2024 meeting
Place of Use

8. Submit Application to DWR 08/31/2024

9. DWR: Review Petition

10.

DWR: Determines Petition accepted

11

. DWR: Reviews CEQA for concurrence

12. DWR: Evaluates whether public notice is
required and whether a major or minor
project
13. DWR: If notice is required Generally issued within 45 days of application
being sent
14. DWR: If no notice or no protests received,

then DWR will prepare the amended
permit(s) and license for our review

15.

DWR: issues amended permit(s) and

license

If a protest is received by DWR during #13, then the process will vary depending upon what
DWR determines must be done to resolve the protest. | have attached the DWR flow chart for
your reference.

During the investigation into historical documents and the required coordination with the
California Department of Fish and Wildlife, it came to light that the RCSD does not hold a
current Lake or Streambed Alteration Agreement for the operational diversion of water from the
SF Eel River. This will need to be remedied in the near future and will likely be a comment from
CDFW when the project is sent to them by DWR.

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

1.

Review and Adopt the Notice of Exemption

2. Review and Approve Resolution 2024-24-08: RESOLUTION OF THE REDWAY
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS FINDING THE WATER
RIGHTS PETITION FOR CHANGE IN PLACE OF USE PROJECT EXEMPT FROM THE
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) AND ADOPTING A NOTICE
OF EXEMPTION

3. Review and approve the proposed Place of Use depicted on Map 1 and 2 for use in the
application to the Division of Water Rights

4. Confirm that the Board wants to request that all the permits be converted into licenses.

Attachments:
Graph of RCSD Annual Diversions Resolution 2023-2024-08
Timeline for Meadows Subdivision Map 1 and 2 for proposed POU
DWR POU Process Flow Chart Notice of Exemption

Historical Documents for Meadows Subdivisions Units 1 - 3 can be downloaded from:
https://redwaycsd.org/place-of-use-review
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/9quigwcffzZ9m22pe3tmye/ANoY6qDFWM1GoER6QQVYx
xU?rlkey=19uofqe4styitzvufy5qggpid4&st=p6i2q7kp&dI=0

Page 6 of 114 4l4Pages



SUOI|IIN

110
100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30
20
10

€¢0¢
eoce
Tcoc
0coc
610¢
810¢
L10¢
910¢
ST0¢
v10¢
€10¢
c10¢
170¢C
0T0¢C
600¢
800¢
£00¢
900¢
S00¢
700¢
€00¢
¢00¢
T00¢
000¢
6661
8661
L66T
9661
5661
661
€661
661
1661
0661
6861
8861
861
9861
5861
7861
€861
861
1861

RCSD Diversion Data by Calendar Year

Max SF Eel Diversion During Development Period

e [\aximum Diversion

==Q==Spring Diversion

Page 7 of 114

==@==River Diversion

@ Total Water Diverted



Timeline for Meadows Subdivisions: Overview Units 1 & 2 | Detail for Unit 3 (Business Park) Phase 1 and 2

Draft - Work in Progress - As of June 13, 2024

Date Description Web | Document #s
1973 W&J bought property and had Bushnell prepare subdivision JJ
map
USGS guad map with Meadows Unit 1, 2 and 3 + Oak Knoll y Map
Station and The Overland subdivisions shown
03/12/1976 | Applications for Meadows Unit 1 (64 lots), 2 (33 lots) and 3 apps - receipt 6484
3 (55 lots) 3? Maps (have 2)
03/1976 Meadows Tentative Map 2
03/1976 Meadows Unit 1, 2 and 3 Road Map 3
Unit 2
03&04/1976 | Various Agencies provide referral comments and Numerous ltrs
recommendations on Unit 2
05/03/1976 | CDF input on all 3 units of the Meadows Subdivision CDF Ltr
06/01/1976 | Letter from County Planning laying out Initial Study Hum Plan Ltr
requirements for Unit 1, 2 and 3 (1 letter sent for each)
Unit 1
06/22/1976 | Initial Study for Unit 1 Sch#76100520 IS + OPR Itr
07/19/1976
09/26/1978 | Hum Board of Sups approves M.U1 P1&2
APN 213-123-06 FMS#283
10/03/1978 | M.U1P1 Final Map Recorded Tract 129 16PM11
12/05/1978 | W&J Itr to Hum Plan requesting M.U3 be kept active Ltr
04/08/1980 | M.U1P2 Application for extension FMS#11-80
10/14/1982 | M.U1P2 Final Map Recorded Tract 199 17PM146
Unit 3
11/1985 NGI meets on site w/ Hum Co Public Works for road alignments
Sum 1986 | W&J install Well #1 and #2 and 10,000-gallon tank Well Testing Report
09/1986 OLA Plan & Profile Sheet 1 for access road alignment
09/21/1987 | Northern Geotechnical Inc, Prelim Geologic Evaluation
01/28/1988 | NGI Report for Water Well pump test and groundwater supply 4 Well Testing Report
evaluation for Well #1 and #2
04/1988 Density Map for Meadows - Multi Unit/Phased Map
04/17/1989 | SHN to HC DEH - Onsite sewage disposal Ltr
03/24/1989 | SHN revised layout to lot and leachfield for on-site wastewater Map
disposal
06/1989 Tentative Subdivision Map Map
06/1989 SHN Preliminary Road Plan Map
06/28/1989 | Memo to County Counsel on behalf of LAFCo about water 5 Hum Plan Memo
service only or both needed for annexation
07/12/1989 | Developer applies to RCSD for annexation for water service to RCSD Minutes
tentative subdivision 6 | 07/12/1989
Rising Sun letter ‘93
08/1990 Revised Tentative Subdivision Map 7 Map
Revised Density Map for Meadows - Multi Unit/Phased
10/1990 SHN Preliminary Grading Plan Map
10/1990 SHN Geohazards Map Map
11/15/1990 | SHN Prelim Geologic Hazard Evaluation Report
11/17/1990 | SHN Revisions to on-site wastewater disposal Map
LAFCo determines both water and sewer required for Staff report by
annexation Planning for Sub.
W&J pivots to using Well #1 & 2 for private system and onsite Pg35 of #11
sewage disposal on Lot #2

Page 8 of 114

Page 1 of 4




Timeline for Meadows Subdivisions: Overview Units 1 & 2 | Detail for Unit 3 (Business Park) Phase 1 and 2

Draft - Work in Progress - As of June 13, 2024

requirements were complied with.

Date Description Web | Document #s
03/07/1991 | Developer applies to County Planning for Major Subdivision (38 Rising Sun App with
lots), rezone, use permit for tentative subdivision Environmental
Case # 93-04 Information
{ZR 03-91, CUP 22-91, and FMS-08-91}
03/05/1991 | Rising Sun Tentative Subdivision map Map
05/17/1991 | CDFG Ltr Ltr
07/08/1991 | CDF&FP Ltr Ltr
07/19/1991 | SHN Revisions to on-site wastewater disposal Map
09/26/1991 | Rising Sun Revised Tentative Subdivision map Map
Subdivision |S/MND circulated 8 | pdf
02/1992 SHN Drainage Boundary Map Map
03/11/1992 | SHN Plans for On-site waste water disposal to Hum Plan Map
03/11/1992 | SHN Revised Grading and Drainage Plan to Hum Plan Map
03/11/1992 | SHN Preliminary Utility Plan to Hum Plan 9 | Map
05/07/1992 | Subdivision approved by Planning Commission (Ph1&2) 10 Agenda Item Trans.
Planning Staff directed to file NOD + HC PC Res 08-92
06/23/1992 | Hum Board of Sups agenda item packet Entire=p 1-98
- Memo with Recommendation p1-3
- Ordinance with legal descriptions - p4-12
- Transmittal - P13
- Conditions of Approval 11 - P16-
- Staff Report - P29-39
- Environmental Assessment - P 40-50
- Referral Agency Comments - P51-58
- Geologic Report - P59-82
Application P83-98
06/23/1992 | Hum Board of Sups held public hearing, adopted Neg Dec, Cert Copy
approved rezone, directed prep of NOD 12
Certified Copy of Portion of Proceedings
07/03/1992 | M.U3 Subdivision NOD filed with County Clerk 13 | NOD
10/21/1992 | Ltr Hum Public Health to DDW requesting technical assistance 14 Ltr
in review of plans for public water system Need Plans
12/14/1992 | CDF Letter from Enviro Coordinator input for final map Letter
W&J builds the 100,000-gallon
8” waterline from 100,000-gallon tank built
Annexation
03/22/1993 | Application by Rising Sun to LAFCo to annex into RCSD for Letter + attachments
sewer and RFPD for fire services 15
260 acres, 7 APNs
03/1993 SHN Annexation Engineering Report for sewer infrastructure Report-need
upgrades and water service
05/04/1993 | Ca Dept of Fish & Game don’t oppose a shortened review. CDFG letter
06/1993 SHN Engineering Annexation Report Update 16 | Report
07/26/1993 | LAFCo Certificate of Filing (referenced in LAFCo resolution)
08/05/1993 | SHN Letter to County submitting 90% road, water and sewer Ltr
plans Need plans-RCSD?
08/02 to Annexation IS/MND circulated Notice of Completion
09/01/1993 | by State Clearinghouse Sch#93081004 17
Humboldt County Planning Dept
Page 50 & 51 show location of new sewerline in Redwood Dr
09/01/1993 | Letter from Governor’s Office of Planning and Research OPR Ltr
acknowledging that the State Clearinghouse review 18

Page 9 of 114

Page 2 of 4




Timeline for Meadows Subdivisions: Overview Units 1 & 2 | Detail for Unit 3 (Business Park) Phase 1 and 2

Draft - Work in Progress - As of June 13, 2024

Date Description Web | Document #s
09/01/1993 | LAFCo holds public hearing, reviews the environmental LAFCo Res 93-04
assessment document, approves the proposal, and conditions 19
and mitigations includes with adoption of Resolution 93-04
09/01/1993 | LAFCo holds public hearing and adopts Res 93-04 and adopts LAFCo Res 93-04
Conditional Negative Declaration 20
NOD adopted
09/01/1993 | NOD posted @ State Clearinghouse and County Clerk 21 NOD
Sch#93081004
09/08/1993 | RCSD adopts Resolution 93-04 Approving the Wallan and RCSD Res93-04
Johnson and Bradley Annexation into RCSD - includes Exhibit 29
Aand B (7 APNs: APNs 223-161-02, 222-151-04 & -05, 223- RCSD Res 93-94-3
171-18 to -20) Why 27
11/23/1993 | Meadows Property Owners Association Articles of Incorporation JJ
executed
MBP Water Pump Station Built + 6” waterline in Redwood Drive JJ
Sewerline built in Redwood Drive to West Coast Road
02/1994 SHN Amendment to Geologic Evaluation Report
Approved by Hum Building 03/09/1994
02/26/1994 | Development Plan w/ Geotech setbacks Map
03/02/1994 | RCSD Ltr accepting deposit & confirming requirements agreed 23 Ltr
upon for sewer
03/10/1994 | RCSD adopts the negative declaration for the pipeline 24 | RCSD Res 93-94-7
03/10/1994 | RCSD accepts the water collection system 25 | RCSD Res 93-94-8
03/21/1994 | CDF&FP Ltr - clearances for industrial park Ltr
03/22/1994 | RCSD Board Meeting Minutes accepting the sewer agreement 26 | Meeting Minutes ?
03/23/1994 | RCSD Itr to Hum Public Works, documenting Board voted to Ltr
accept the agreement and will supply sewer service upon
receipt of connection fees and applicants industrial waste permit
03/24/1994 | RCSD reports Hum Public Works accepts Sewer plan JJ
03/25/1994 | RCSD + W&J Agreement for Sewer Infrastructure (4 pages) 27
03/25/1994 | RCSD accepts sewer system as of 03/22/94 28 | Lir
04/04/1994 | Building Dept Plot Plan comments for Lot 4, 1180 Evergreen Rd | 29 | Plot Plan
05/11/1994 | Notice of development plan and geologic report for M.U3P1 1994-13755-3
05/11/1994 | M.U3P1 Final Map Recorded as Tract No 424 Map 021 Maps 027
12/14/1994 | Plans for building construction on Lot#6 APN 223-311-008 Map
1997 W&J Assn deed to RCSD JJ
03/02/1998 | RCSD + W&J Execute Agreement dated February 1998 for 30 Agreement
Water Infrastructure RCSD Mtg Minutes
03/02/1998 | W&J notes on cutting air gap into W/J pipe at 100,000-gallon JJ
tank
03/02/1998 | RCSD accepts water system (from letter 04/25/2000) 31 | RCSD Mtg Minutes
03/16/1998 | Bill of Sale from W&J to RCSD for the water infrastructure for $1 | 32 | Bill of Sale & Check
12/1999 Tank Easement JJ
06/09/1999 | App Assist Mtg for Reapproval of Unit 3 Ph 2 Mtg Memo
08/09/1999 | Meadows Unit 3 Phase 2: application for reapproval (lots 8-15, FMS-99-03
22-38) + add quarry as lot 39 and remainders
12/01/1999 | M.U3P2 MND with MMRP FMS-99-03
02/03/2000 | M.U3P2 approved by Planning Commission FMS-99-03
04/25/2000 | RCSD Itr clarifying dates for their acceptance of the water and Ltr
sewer infrastructure (sewer approved 03/25/94 and water 33

3/2/98)

Page 10 of 114

Page 3 of 4




Timeline for Meadows Subdivisions: Overview Units 1 & 2 | Detail for Unit 3 (Business Park) Phase 1 and 2

Draft - Work in Progress - As of June 13, 2024

Date Description Web | Document #s
04/04/2001 | M.U3 Phase 2 Final Map recorded with Tract No 525 022 Maps 131-136
Unit 2 Minor Deviation
06/05/2001 | Application to Hum Plan for parcels 1-4+ remainder FMS 05-07 P279
Minor Deviation to Unit 2
01/09/2004 | SWRCB-DWR memo for CEQA CE Class 19 for addition of Memo
YMCA and several adjacent parcels into POU and 34
recommendation to license both permits
03/23/2005 | Meadows Unit 2 Minor Deviation (lots 1-5) Application FMS 05-07
Lot 1 includes water tank
Lots 2, 4, and 5 development deeded to County
Lot 3 SFR with RCSD W & S
03/23/2005 | Tentative Map of Subdivision for FMS 05-07 35 Map
Shows all units and phases
03/24/2005 | RCSD will serve letter for water & sewer for SFR on 250-acre 36 RCSD Ltr + map
Parcel 3 of FMS-05-07 (APNs 223-162-004 & -005)
01/17/2006 | As Built Grading Plan for Lot 31 APN 223-311-033 Map
Environmental Checklist FMS-05-07 P197-222
05/17/2006 | Minor Deviation OPR ltr Sch#2006042094 MinDev p186
05/18/2006 | To Hum Plan Commission M.U2 - FMS-05-07 Hum Plan Comm
Adopted MND (includes 100,000-gallon tank parcel) Res 06-63
05/22/2006 | Certified Copy of Portion of Proceedings adopting MND Cert. Copy
06/09/2006 | Hum Plan prepared NOD NOD
06/21/2006 | Filed NOD with County Clerk NOD
Notice of Completion p193-196
10/03/2007 | DDW inspection report includes the 100,000-gallon in ground DDW report
concrete tank
2007 W&J coordination with adding 250 acres into District JJ
08/09/2007 | W&J send Itr to RCSD putting LAFCO application on hold for JJ
250 acres
12/18/2007 | Deed granting easements for water infrastructure prepared JJ
01/29/2008 | M.U2 Minor Deviation to the Approved Final Map Subdivision
Approved
04/02/2008 | Deed granting easements for water infrastructure Recorded 2008-8712-9
Parcel 1: Road access to E side of Hwy 101 50’ wide to tank
Parcel 2: Waterline 10’ wide from M.U3P2 to tank 37
Parcel 3: 100,000-gallon tank site 0.14 acres {APN 223-331-
001}
09/10/2008 | M. U2 Final Map recorded Map Tract 609 24 Maps 75-79
APN maps
03/11/2015 | W&J memo to John Rogers @ RCSD about W/J wells and JJ

permanent separation near the tank after field trip

Example Acronyms:

W&J = Wallan and Johnson Corporation

JJ = Jim Johnson

Hum Plan = Humboldt County Planning Department

CDF&FP = California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection
MBP = Meadows Business Park

M.U3P1 = Meadows Unit 3 Phase 1

Page 11 of 114

Page 4 of 4




Petition

Filed

What Is the

Review (see petition

acceptance flow chart) p r O C e S S
CEQA Process and/or public fo r a p etltl O n ?

trust review.
If applicable, North Coast
Instream Flow policy review.

Evaluate if Public Notice
Required (tit. 23, CCR §§
795, 843)

Options
Protest a) Order, or

Filed b) Permit or License Issued or
c) Amended Permit or License Issued

Protest
Negotiations Protest
and Division Cancelled
Review

Protest
Resolved

No

Major Project Order approving or denying

petition

Hearing

Minor Project Field Division Decision approving or
Investigation denying petition

Page 12 of 114



Redway Community Services District
P.O. Box 40
Redway, CA 95560

(707) 923-3101

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2024-08

RESOLUTION OF THE REDWAY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT BOARD OF
DIRECTORS FINDING THE WATER RIGHTS PETITION FOR CHANGE IN PLACE OF USE
PROJECT EXEMPT FROM THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA)
AND ADOPTING A NOTICE OF EXEMPTION

WHEREAS, the Redway Community Services District (the District) operates a public water
system that includes treatment, distribution, and storage facilities; and

WHEREAS, the District holds the following water diversion permits and license:

App Permit Permit | License . Max_ . Max_
App. # Date # Date 4 Water Source Diversion | Diversion
(cfs) (acre-ftlyear)
11876 | 05/12/47 | 7489 | 09/16/49 | 3791 | SF Eel River 0.223 161.45
23017 | 04/05/68 | 15665 | 07/25/68 --- SF Eel River 1.050 441
23018 | 04/05/68 | 15666 | 07/25/68 --- Unnamed Stream 0.123 52

WHEREAS, it has come to the Board of Directors’ (“Board”) attention that the Meadows
Business Park and surrounding parcels were annexed into the Humboldt Local Agency
Formation Commission Jurisdictional Boundary in 1993 but were never added to the Place of
Use for the water diversions; and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to correct this oversight; and

WHEREAS, the Board reviewed and considered the following background information and
environmental assessments associated with the creation of the parcels in the Meadows
Business Park (Unit 3):
- In 1976 the Wallan and Johnson Corporation applied for the Meadows Subdivision, which
contained three units
- In October 1986, Unit 1 was completed in two phases, was on the easterly side of Hwy 101, and
serviced by the Garberville Sanitary District for sewer and the Garberville Water Company for
water
- Initially Wallan and Johnson approach the Redway Community Services District about providing
only water service to the tentative subdivision for Unit 3
- OnJuly 12, 1989 the RCSD board notes in their meeting minutes that County Counsel was
contacted for an opinion on water only service
- In March 1991 the developer applies to the County for the major subdivision of Unit 3, aka the
Meadows Business Park, which is on the westerly side of Hwy 101, which was completed in two
phases, and eventually divided APNs 223-161-02 into 38 lots with remainders {APNs 223-161-
003 through -041}

Page 13 of 114



- The subdivision and rezone for Unit 3 was reviewed under CEQA with an Environmental
Assessment determined to be a Conditional Negative Declaration with the following milestone
dates:

Public Hearing by County Planning Commission = May 7, 1992

Planning Commission Approval of the project May 7, 1992
with conditions, adoption of findings

Public Hearing by Board of Supervisors June 23, 1992
BOS adopted the Planning Commission June 23, 1992

Findings and the Negative Declaration of

Environmental Impact

Notice of Determination prepared & filed with July 3, 1992
State Clearinghouse and County Clerk

- The environmental review of the subdivision included the construction of new water and sewer
infrastructure (UTILITIES section) for the new lots. The environmental review stated that the
applicant, Wallan and Johnson, would develop the private water source and have an initial
storage capacity of 100,000. The sewage disposal evaluated was an on-site community
sewage disposal system on Lot 2. The Utility Plan dated October 1990 and prepared by SHN
detailed the onsite infrastructure planned to transmit the water and sewage to and from each lot
to their respective systems. Planning Commission Staff Report page 7 details the staff analysis
of Sewer and Water and outlines the conditions included in the approval of the subdivision.

- In March 1993, Wallan and Johnson applied to Humboldt LAFCo for annexation of the Meadows
Business Park subdivision and surrounding parcels into the Redway Community Services
District for sewer service and the Redway Fire Protection District for fire service,

- Humboldt LAFCo prepared an Initial Study and Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration
{Sch#93081004} with the following milestone dates:

Notice of Completion and public circulation Aug 2, 1993
LAFCo holds Public Hearing and reviews the Sept 1, 1993
CEQA document

LAFCo Approval of the project with Sept 1, 1993

conditions, adoption of findings, and adoption

of the Conditional Negative Declaration -

LAFCo Res 93-04

Notice of Determination prepared & filed Sept 1, 1993

- RCSD Resolution 93-94-3 (or 93-04) with Exhibits A and B dated September 8, 1993 was
adopted approving the Wallan and Johnson and Bradley annexation of seven assessor parcel
numbers: 223-161-02, 222-151-04 & -05, 223-171-18 & -19 & -20 & -21.

- RCSD Resolution 93-94-7 dated March 10,1994 was adopted, adopting the negative declaration
for the pipeline

- RCSD Resolution 93-94-8 dated March 10,1994 was adopted and accepts the water collection
system

- On March 22, 1994, the RCSD board accepts the sewer agreement and the sewer system

- On March 25, 1994 the agreement between RCSD and Wallan and Johnson setting the terms
for sewer service to the Meadows Business Park is executed

- On May 11, 1994 the first phase of the Meadows Business Park subdivision is recorded as Tract
No 424, dividing APN 223-161-02 and creating APNs 223-161-003 through -015 and a
remainder

Resolution 2023-2024-08: NOE for ExpansioP@g&@ 14 of 114 Page 2 of 5



- On March 2, 1998 RCSD’s Board accepts the water system, approves the water agreement, and
bill of sale and executes the water agreement

- On March 16, 1998 RCSD executes the Bill of Sale for the water system infrastructure and
easements including:

e 6" water main from West Coast Road, along Redwood Drive and up Evergreen Road to
the water booster station near Lot 1

e All the mains, lot services, and boxes

e Fire hydrants

e Water booster station with deeded easement

e Electric and electronic system controls

e 8" water main from the freeway tunnel up the private road to the 100,000-gallon tank
including control wires and deeded easement

« 100,000-gallon concrete water storage tank and easement

e The isolation valve that separates the tank from the water delivered to the tank from the
wells

- On April 22, 1998 RCSD issues check # 667 in the amount of $1.00 to complete the purchase of
the water system infrastructure.

- On April 4, 2001 the second and final phase of the Meadows Business Park subdivision is
recorded as Tract No 525, dividing the remainder from phase 1 and creating APNs 223-161-016
through -041.

- Subsequent to the recordation of the two phases of the subdivision, APNs 223-161-038 & -039
were combined to become 223-161-042; APNs 223-161-014 & -015 were combined to become
223-161-043; APNs 223-161-033 & -034 were combined to become 223-161-044

- On March 24, 2005 RCSD issues a will serve letter for the 250-acre parcel 3 of the Unit 2
subdivision (now APNs 223-162-004 & -005) for water and sewer service to a single-family
residence.

WHEREAS, SF Eel River diversion permit A23017 has a development period that ended on
December 1, 1995; and

WHEREAS, the maximum volume diverted from the SF Eel River during the development
permit was 73,200,000 gallons in 1989; and

WHEREAS, the District has been providing service to most of the parcels for decades; and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it can service all the parcels within the area
proposed for addition to the Place of Use without exceeding the maximum amount diverted
during the development period; and

WHEREAS, the Board desires for the State Water Resources Control Board Division of Water
Rights to convert the permit to a license as part of this minor change; and

WHEREAS, in roughly 1994 the District requested a change in POU from the State Water
Resources Control Board Division of Water Rights for permit A23017 to add the area for the
YMCA camp and various single family residence parcels, the POU change was noticed and
no protests were received; and

WHEREAS, the Division of Water Rights reviewed the CEQA implications of converting the

permit to a license in 2004 and determined that a Categorical Exemption Class 19 was
appropriate; and

Resolution 2023-2024-08: NOE for ExpansioP@g&@ 15 of 114 Page 3 of 5



WHEREAS, LAFCo recognized in the MSR/SOI adopted on November 15, 2023, that service
connections to APNs 222-222-004 (YMCA) and 222-161-002 (Eel River Camp) were made
pre-2001, which was before LAFCo approval was required, and therefore designated as out of
agency services and found their action exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)3, and

WHEREAS, the District desires to include APN 222-161-02 consisting of the Eel River Camp
for delivery of bulk water when the camp is converted into a base camp in response to an
emergency; and

WHEREAS, the Board reviewed and considered the components of the WATER RIGHTS
PETITION FOR CHANGE IN PLACE OF USE PROJECT for the SF Eel River diversion license
A11876 and permit A23017 (“Project”) and as depicted on Map 1 and 2; and

WHEREAS, CEQA requires the Board, as a lead agency under CEQA, to consider the
potential environmental effects of any project approved by the Board; and

WHEREAS, CEQA Guidelines § 15301 titled Class 1. Existing Facilities, categorically exempts
from CEQA any project that is for the purpose of the operation, repair, maintenance, permitting,
leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private structures, facilities,
mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of
existing or former use; and

WHEREAS, CEQA Guidelines § 15319 titled Class 19. Annexations of Existing Facilities and
Lots for Exempt Facilities, categorically exempts from CEQA any project that consists of
a) Annexations to a city or special district of areas containing existing public or private
structures developed to the densily allowed by the current zoning or pre-zoning of either
the gaining or losing governmental agency whichever is more restrictive, provided,
however, that the extension of utility services to the existing facilities would have a
capacity to serve only the existing facilities.
b) Annexations of individual small parcels of the minimum size for facilities exempted by
Section 15303, New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures.

WHEREAS, categorical exemptions shall not be used for an activity where there is a
reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment due to
unusual circumstances (CEQA Guidelines, § 15300.2 (c)); and

WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the attached Notice of Exemption.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Redway Community Services District Board of
Directors:

1. The foregoing recitals are hereby adopted as true and correct.

2. The Board has reviewed and analyzed applicable law and determined that the Project is
Class 1 and Class 19 categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to 14 Cal.Code Regs.
Article 19, commencing with Section 15300.

3. The categorical exemptions applicable to the Project are not subject to any applicable
exception, including the “unusual circumstances” exception.

Resolution 2023-2024-08: NOE for ExpansioP@g&@ 16 of 114 Page 4 of 5



4. In light of the foregoing, the Board adopts the Notice of Exemption, attached hereto and
finds that the Project is exempt from CEQA review.

5. The General Manager is hereby directed to file the Notice of Exemption as attached for
the Project with the County Clerk of Humboldt County and the Office of Planning and
Research in conformance with the procedures provided for the filing of such notices in
CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines.

6. No activities other than the project as described in the NOE will be completed without
further CEQA evaluation and compliance.

Passed and adopted by the Redway Community Services District's Board of Directors on
June 19, 2024 during a